X. PROFESSORSHIPS AND TEACHING FELLOWSHIPS

The John P. Wilson Professorship in Law was established in 1929 with funds contributed for the John P. Wilson Memorial Foundation by John P. Wilson, Jr., and Anna Wilson Dickinson as a memorial to their father, John P. Wilson, for many years an eminent member of the Chicago Bar.

The James Parker Hall Professorship in Law was established in 1930 by the alumni of the School in memory of James Parker Hall, dean of the School from 1904 until his death in 1928.

The Max Pam Professorship of Comparative Law was established in 1935 in memory of Max Pam, for many years an eminent member of the Chicago Bar, with funds allocated by the Trustees under the will of Mr. Pam.

The Harry A. Bigelow Teaching Fellowships were established in 1947 in honor of Harry A. Bigelow, John P. Wilson Professor Emeritus of Law and Dean Emeritus of the Law School.

XI. STUDENT AID

SCHOLARSHIPS

A number of scholarships are awarded to students of outstanding ability who need financial assistance. Some of these scholarships are for full tuition, some for half tuition, and some in amounts in excess of the tuition charge. In the case of veterans, scholarship awards may be made as cash grants to supplement government living allowances. Application for scholarships should be made upon a form obtained from the office of the Dean of the Law School (except in cases specified below).

The James Nelson Raymond Scholarships were established in 1930 from a fund given by Anna Louise Raymond in memory of her husband, James Nelson Raymond.

The Leo F. Wormser Scholarships were established in 1935 by friends of Leo F. Wormser, J.D. 1909, as a memorial to him. In 1940 an additional gift to this scholarship fund was made by Mrs. Leo F. Wormser in memory of Mr. Wormser’s mother, Mrs. Frida Wormser.

Law School Alumni Scholarships are awarded from a fund contributed by alumni of the School. During 1948 contributions to this fund were made by members of the classes of 1907, 1908, 1909, 1912, 1913, 1917, 1918, 1922, 1923, 1927, 1932, 1933, 1937, 1938, and 1942.

University Scholarships are awarded from a fund annually allotted to the School by the Trustees of the University. These scholarships may be for either full or half tuition.

One of the James Nelson Raymond Scholarships and a number of University Scholarships for full tuition are usually awarded to entering students. Holders of these scholarships who make outstanding records in the Law School receive renewals of their scholarships or equivalent awards. In addition to these scholarships, approximately one-fourth of the University Scholarships for half tuition are usually awarded to entering students.
Applications for the following scholarships are to be made to the University Committee on Fellowships and Scholarships, Cobb Lecture Hall, Room 108, during the period from January 1 to April 1 for the year following.

*Junior-College Entrance Scholarships.* Entrance scholarships are awarded annually to graduates of junior colleges and to students with equivalent college standing, upon the academic record of the student, upon the recommendation of the faculty of the college which he has attended, and upon performance in an aptitude test given by the University.

*The LaVerne Noyes Foundation Scholarships* are awarded to veterans of World War I (1917–19) and their descendants. Further information may be secured from the Committee on Fellowships and Scholarships (Administration Building, 2d floor).

*Marshall Field & Company Work-Scholarships.* Not more than twenty full-tuition scholarships are available annually to students in the College, the Divisions, and the Professional Schools of the University who are employed by Marshall Field & Company under the study-employment plan. Remuneration for service is made in addition to the scholarship grant. Any student eighteen years of age or older is eligible to apply. Application may be made to the Committee on Scholarships.

**LOANS**

Several loan funds are available to law students. Loans are usually granted only to students who have completed at least one year of residence in the School.

*The Ernst Freund Loan Fund* was established in 1922 by the late Professor Ernst Freund and since his death has been augmented by other contributions.

*The James Parker Hall Loan Fund* was established by the alumni of the Law School in memory of the late Dean Hall.

*The Floyd R. Mechem Loan Fund for Law Students* was established in 1921 by the late Professor Floyd R. Mechem.

*The Anna Louise Raymond Loan Fund* was established by Anna Louise Raymond in 1932 for the benefit of students in the Law School, preference to be given to women students.

*The Harry A. Bigelow Loan Fund* was established in 1939 by the Law Class of 1929 in honor of Dean Bigelow.

*The Julius Rosenthal Fund* was established in 1903 in memory of Julius Rosenthal, by the late Judge Julian W. Mack, formerly a professor in the School.

*The Clark B. Whittier Law Loan Fund* was established by Professor Clark B. Whittier in recognition of his previous connection with the University of Chicago Law School as a member of its Faculty.

*University Tuition Loan Funds.* The University has established a loan fund from which loans may be made to students in need of financial assistance. The loans bear interest at 5 per cent, are for not over one year, but may on proper showing be extended.

A form of application for a loan may be obtained on request from the office of the Dean of the Law School.
OPPORTUNITIES FOR PART-TIME EMPLOYMENT

The facilities of the Office of Vocational Guidance and Placement are available for students of the Law School who desire part-time employment. For detailed information concerning the opportunities for such employment, applications should be made to the Office of Vocational Guidance and Placement (Administration Building, 3d floor).

XII. GRADUATE FELLOWSHIPS AND RESEARCH FUNDS

The Law School has available a number of fellowships for graduate students. The James Nelson Raymond Fellowship was created in 1933 and 1934 by Anna Louise Raymond in memory of her husband, James Nelson Raymond. The annual income is awarded to a research student in law whose record gives evidence of a capacity for distinguished work in legal research.

University Fellowships. A limited number of fellowships are reserved for research students in law.

The Frieda and Arnold Shure Research Fund was established in 1945 by Frieda and Arnold Shure. The income is to be used for legal studies of importance for the public welfare.

XIII. STUDENT ACTIVITIES AND HONORS

The University of Chicago Law Review, founded in 1933, is published by the School under the management of a Board of Editors composed of students. Members of the second-year classes who rank highest in scholarship are invited to become competitors for election to the staff of the Review. From this group the Board of Editors chooses the editorial staff of the Review.

The Editors-in-Chief for 1947-48 were Charles D. Stein (1947), Bernard B. Weissbourd (1948), and Donald J. Yellon (1948). Editors included William S. Boylston, Harold P. Green, Lawrence Howe, Jr., Jerald E. Jackson, Harold A. Katz, William T. Martin, Jr., James J. McClure, Jr., Baxter K. Richardson, Jr., Milton I. Shadur, and George E. Wise. The Business Manager was James H. Evans, and the Associate Business Manager was Joseph E. Sheeks.

The Chicago Chapter of the Order of the Coif is an honor society founded to encourage scholarship and to advance the ethical standards of the legal profession. Its members are selected each spring from the 10 per cent of the graduating class who rank highest in scholarship. In 1948 the elected members were Zenia Sachs Goodman, James T. Lyon, A. Bruce Mercer, Edwin A. Wahlen, Bernard B. Weissbourd, and Donald J. Yellon.

Through the courtesy of the publishers, an award of a one-year subscription to the United States Law Week is made each year to the student who has made the most satisfactory scholastic progress during his final year. The recipient of the award in 1948 was Robert A. McCord.